## Oracle® Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service Supplier User Guide



Release 19.12 F81035-01 July 2023

ORACLE

Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service Supplier User Guide, Release 19.12

F81035-01

Copyright © 2023, Oracle and/or its affiliates.

Primary Author: Bernadette Goodman

Contributing Authors: Simon Tucker, Aidan Ratcliffe

This software and related documentation are provided under a license agreement containing restrictions on use and disclosure and are protected by intellectual property laws. Except as expressly permitted in your license agreement or allowed by law, you may not use, copy, reproduce, translate, broadcast, modify, license, transmit, distribute, exhibit, perform, publish, or display any part, in any form, or by any means. Reverse engineering, disassembly, or decompilation of this software, unless required by law for interoperability, is prohibited.

The information contained herein is subject to change without notice and is not warranted to be error-free. If you find any errors, please report them to us in writing.

If this is software, software documentation, data (as defined in the Federal Acquisition Regulation), or related documentation that is delivered to the U.S. Government or anyone licensing it on behalf of the U.S. Government, then the following notice is applicable:

U.S. GOVERNMENT END USERS: Oracle programs (including any operating system, integrated software, any programs embedded, installed, or activated on delivered hardware, and modifications of such programs) and Oracle computer documentation or other Oracle data delivered to or accessed by U.S. Government end users are "commercial computer software," "commercial computer software documentation," or "limited rights data" pursuant to the applicable Federal Acquisition Regulation and agency-specific supplemental regulations. As such, the use, reproduction, duplication, release, display, disclosure, modification, preparation of derivative works, and/or adaptation of i) Oracle programs (including any operating system, integrated software, any programs embedded, installed, or activated on delivered hardware, and modifications of such programs), ii) Oracle computer documentation and/or iii) other Oracle data, is subject to the rights and limitations specified in the license contained in the applicable contract. The terms governing the U.S. Government's use of Oracle cloud services are defined by the applicable contract for such services. No other rights are granted to the U.S. Government.

This software or hardware is developed for general use in a variety of information management applications. It is not developed or intended for use in any inherently dangerous applications, including applications that may create a risk of personal injury. If you use this software or hardware in dangerous applications, then you shall be responsible to take all appropriate fail-safe, backup, redundancy, and other measures to ensure its safe use. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates disclaim any liability for any damages caused by use of this software or hardware in dangerous applications.

Oracle®, Java, and MySQL are registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates. Other names may be trademarks of their respective owners.

Intel and Intel Inside are trademarks or registered trademarks of Intel Corporation. All SPARC trademarks are used under license and are trademarks or registered trademarks of SPARC International, Inc. AMD, Epyc, and the AMD logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Advanced Micro Devices. UNIX is a registered trademark of The Open Group.

This software or hardware and documentation may provide access to or information about content, products, and services from third parties. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates are not responsible for and expressly disclaim all warranties of any kind with respect to third-party content, products, and services unless otherwise set forth in an applicable agreement between you and Oracle. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates will not be responsible for any loss, costs, or damages incurred due to your access to or use of third-party content, products, or services, except as set forth in an applicable agreement between you and Oracle.

## Contents

### Send Us Your Comments

#### Preface

Audience	vi
Documentation Accessibility	vi
Related Documents	vi
Improved Process for Oracle Retail Documentation Corrections	vii
Oracle Retail Documentation on the Oracle Help Center (docs.oracle.com)	vii
Conventions	vii

## 1 Introduction

Available Options Based on Type of User	1-2
Authority Profiles	1-3
Getting Started	1-3

## 2 Supplier Management

Registration	2-2
Adding a Supplier	2-2
Viewing Registration Requests	2-6
Accepting the Registration	2-6
Approving the Registration	2-10
Completing the Approval of the Site	2-11
Adding Additional Sites	2-13
Deleting Suppliers and Sites	2-15

## 3 Site Management

## 4 Contacts Management

Creating a Contact	4-1
Editing a Contact	4-3
Deleting a Contact	4-4

## 5 Alerts Management

Managing Alerts	5-1
Create a New Alert	5-1
View or Edit an Existing Alert	5-3
Responding to Alerts	5-4

## 6 Audits & Visits

5-4
5-4
6-4
6-7
6-7
5-8
5 5 5 5

## 7 Scorecard Management

Deleting a Scorecard

7-4

## Send Us Your Comments

Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service Supplier User Guide, Release 19.12

Oracle welcomes customers' comments and suggestions on the quality and usefulness of this document.

Your feedback is important, and helps us to best meet your needs as a user of our products. For example:

- Are the implementation steps correct and complete?
- Did you understand the context of the procedures?
- Did you find any errors in the information?
- Does the structure of the information help you with your tasks?
- Do you need different information or graphics? If so, where, and in what format?
- Are the examples correct? Do you need more examples?

If you find any errors or have any other suggestions for improvement, then please tell us your name, the name of the company who has licensed our products, the title and part number of the documentation and the chapter, section, and page number (if available).

#### Note:

Before sending us your comments, you might like to check that you have the latest version of the document and if any concerns are already addressed. To do this, access the Online Documentation available on the Oracle Help Center (docs.oracle.com) web site. It contains the most current Documentation Library plus all documents revised or released recently.

Send your comments to us using the electronic mail address: retail-doc\_us@oracle.com

Please give your name, address, electronic mail address, and telephone number (optional).

If you need assistance with Oracle software, then please contact your support representative or Oracle Support Services.

If you require training or instruction in using Oracle software, then please contact your Oracle local office and inquire about our Oracle University offerings. A list of Oracle offices is available on our web site at http://www.oracle.com.



## Preface

This document describes the Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service Supplier user interface. It provides step-by-step instructions to complete most tasks that can be performed through the user interface.

#### Note:

#### **IDCS Update to Identity Provider**

References in the text or images within this document, to IDCS, IDCS or OCI IAM, Identity Cloud Service, or Identity Management have been replaced by Identity Provider within the actual application.

## Audience

This document is intended for the users of the Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service Supplier module.

## **Documentation Accessibility**

For information about Oracle's commitment to accessibility, visit the Oracle Accessibility Program website at <a href="http://www.oracle.com/pls/topic/lookup?ctx=acc&id=docacc">http://www.oracle.com/pls/topic/lookup?ctx=acc&id=docacc</a>.

#### Access to Oracle Support

Oracle customers that have purchased support have access to electronic support through My Oracle Support. For information, visit http://www.oracle.com/pls/topic/lookup?ctx=acc&id=info or visit http://www.oracle.com/pls/topic/lookup? ctx=acc&id=trs if you are hearing impaired.

## **Related Documents**

For more information, see the following documents in the Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service documentation set:

- Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service Administration Guide
- Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service Implementation Guide
- Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service Release Readiness Guide



Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service User Guide

For information on the Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service modules, see the following documents:

- Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service Product User Guide
- Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service Project User Guide
- Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service Reports User Guide

## Improved Process for Oracle Retail Documentation Corrections

To more quickly address critical corrections to Oracle Retail documentation content, Oracle Retail documentation may be republished whenever a critical correction is needed. For critical corrections, the republication of an Oracle Retail document may at times **not** be attached to a numbered software release; instead, the Oracle Retail document will simply be replaced on the Oracle Help Center (docs.oracle.com) Web site, or, in the case of Data Models, to the applicable My Oracle Support Documentation container where they reside.

Oracle Retail documentation is available on the Oracle Help Center (docs.oracle.com) at the following URL:

https://docs.oracle.com/en/industries/retail/index.html

An updated version of the applicable Oracle Retail document is indicated by Oracle part number, as well as print date (month and year). An updated version uses the same part number, with a higher-numbered suffix. For example, part number E123456-02 is an updated version of an document with part number E123456-01.

If a more recent version of the document is available, that version supersedes all previous versions.

# Oracle Retail Documentation on the Oracle Help Center (docs.oracle.com)

Oracle Retail product documentation is available on the following web site:

https://docs.oracle.com/en/industries/retail/index.html

(Data Model documents can be obtained through My Oracle Support.)

## Conventions

The following text conventions are used in this document:

Convention	Meaning
boldface	Boldface type indicates graphical user interface elements associated with an action, or terms defined in text or the glossary.
italic	Italic type indicates book titles, emphasis, or placeholder variables for which you supply particular values.
monospace	Monospace type indicates commands within a paragraph, URLs, code in examples, text that appears on the screen, or text that you enter.



## 1 Introduction

The Supplier module provides capabilities to manage suppliers including the identification, selection, and approval of suppliers.

To access a Supplier option, select the option from the Supplier drop-down list.



Figure 1-1 Supplier Drop-Down List

The supplier user accesses the Supplier options through Company rather than Supplier.

Figure 1-2 Supplier Options from Company Drop-Down List



For information on the choices in the drop-down list, see the chapter shown in Table 1-1. For information on the Users option, see the *Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service Administration Guide*.

Option	Description	Chapter
Suppliers	Maintenance of the supplier account details.	Supplier Management
Sites	Maintenance of the supplier's individual manufacturing and packing location details.	Site Management

 Table 1-1
 Description of Supplier Drop-Down Choices



Option	Description	Chapter
Contacts	Maintenance of the individual contacts at the supplier and site locations.	Contacts Management
Alerts and Alert Responses	Process for the retailer/portal owner to issue alerts and manage alert responses.	Alerts Management
Audits & Visits	Management of the regular auditing program for the supplier base.	Audits & Visits
Scorecards	Management of the regular performance assessment program for the supplier base.	Scorecard Management

#### Table 1-1 (Cont.) Description of Supplier Drop-Down Choices

## Available Options Based on Type of User

Retailer and supplier users may have access to the Supplier module. Based on the type of user, the options are typically presented in the following manner:

Retailer users

Retailer users see both Company (for the retailer) and Supplier (their suppliers). Under Company:

- Company Details: Name and address details of the retailer.
- Users: List of all retailer users.
- Admin: Administration options if the user has access to any options.

Under Supplier:

- Suppliers: List of all supplier records.
- Sites: List of all site records.
- Contacts: List of all supplier/site contacts for all suppliers and sites.
- Users: List of all supplier/site users for all suppliers and sites.
- Audits & Visits: Work with audits and visits if the user has access to that module.
- Alerts: Work with alerts if the user has access to that module.
- Scorecards: Work with scorecards if the user has access to that module.
- Suppliers users

Supplier users see Company (for their organization):

- Company Details: Supplier record.
- Sites: List of the supplier's sites with which the user is associated.
- Contacts: List of the supplier's supplier and site contacts. A site user only sees the contacts for the sites with which they are associated.
- Users: List of the supplier's supplier and site users. A site user only sees the users for the sites with which they are associated.
- Audits & Visits: Work with audits and visits if the user has access to that module.



- Alerts: Work with alerts if the user has access to that module.
- Scorecards: Work with scorecards if the user has access to that module.

## **Authority Profiles**

The following authority profiles are available for retailer users to provide access to maintain supplier and site records:

#### Supplier & Site Administrator

The Supplier & Site Administrator Authority Profile is available to allow retailer users to edit all the fields in a supplier or site record. This authority profile can be assigned to a user role or a specific retailer user.

#### **Supplier User Editor**

The Supplier User Editor Authority Profile is available to allow retailer users to edit all the fields in a supplier user record, except for roles and permissions. This authority profile can be assigned to a user role or a specific retailer user.

#### **Supplier Contacts Administrator**

The Supplier Contacts Administrator Authority Profile is available to allow retailer users to create, edit, and delete supplier contacts. This authority profile can be assigned to a user role or a specific retailer user.

## **Getting Started**

Before using Supplier, be sure that you are familiar with the user interface. If you need more information, see the *Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service User Guide*. This User Guide covers the login, home page, and user interface.



## 2 Supplier Management

To work with suppliers, select the Suppliers option from the Supplier drop-down list. The Suppliers tab opens. This page shows the list of available suppliers.

#### Figure 2-1 Suppliers Page

Actions 🖓				Suppliers
nter search criteria 🛛 🔍 🦻 🤣 Ad	vanced Search		Default	
Name 🔺	Code	Country		
DB Test Supplier A	A0002	United Kingdom		
Test Supplier	A0005	-		
TM Supplier	A0001	-		
VH Test Supplier 1	A0003	United Kingdom		
4 Page: 1 of 1 🕨 🕅	Rows per page 30	Displaying items 1 to 4 of 4		

The list shows the suppliers in order by supplier name. For each supplier, the supplier code and country are also shown.

The following actions are available:

- New Supplier: For more information, see Registration.
- New Alert: For more information, see Alerts Management.

To see the details for a specific supplier, double-click the row. A tab opens with the details. You can also select the View or Edit actions.

Figure 2-2 Supplier Details

🌎 Home Page 🛛 🚆 Sup	ppliers 🗴 🎦 PK TEST										
PK TEST											
Actions 🕀										PK TEST ⁄ 🚺	
Supplier Details C	Contacts	Sites	Product Records	Custom Fields		Change History	Attachments				
Details											
Name:		PK TEST			Code:			A0038			^
Contact Name:		aaaa			Email:			patrick.kirkham@micros	.com		
Phone:		951-653-2573			Fax:			951-656-1982			
Supplier Type:		Supplier / Vendor	*		VAT Nu	mber:		-			
Website:		-			Billing	Code:		medium	*		
Lead Business Unit:		United States of A	merica 🔻 *		Supplie	r Top Grade:			~		
<b>Registered</b> Company No:		PK TEST			Supplie	r GLN:			*		
Area:		F&E									
B Other											
Comments:						~ ~					
Address											
Local Address											V
Country:		United States									



The following subtabs are available. Select a subtab to see the information for the supplier:

Supplier Details

#### Note:

Supplier GLN may be configured to be mandatory, to be of a specific format (such as 13 digits), and to include check digit validation.

- Contacts: List of contacts for the supplier.
- Sites: List of the supplier's site locations.
- Product Records: If Product is purchased and implemented, list of product records.
- Linked Suppliers: If enabled, the number of linked suppliers is shown in parentheses on the subtab.
- Custom Fields
- Change History
- Attachments: List of documents attached to the supplier.

## Registration

This section covers the steps for registering a new supplier:

- Adding a Supplier
- Viewing Registration Requests
- Accepting the Registration

All of these steps are pertinent for retailer users. For supplier users, only accepting a registration is a pertinent step.

## Adding a Supplier

To add a supplier, select the New Supplier action. The Create Supplier/Site tab opens. From this page, a supplier can be added and sites for the supplier can be defined.



Add a new Supplier				
Supplier Name:		-		
Supplier Code:	A0008		•	
Contact Name:		-		
anguage:	English (British)	~		
Supplier Email:		-		
Confirm Email:			•	
Lead Business Unit:		× •		
Supplier Type:		<b>~</b> •		
Potential Supplier?:	CYes €No *			
Billing Code:		~		
Site Name:				
			•	
Site Name: Site Code:	A0008-0001		•	
Site Code: Lead Business Unit:	A0008-0001	*	•	
Site Code: Lead Business Unit: Site Type:		•	•	
Site Code: Lead Business Unit: Site Type: Requires Maintenance Audit:	A0008-0001	• •		
Site Code: Lead Business Unit: Site Type: Requires Maintenance Audit: Reason:		•	•	
Site Code: Lead Business Unit: Site Type: Requires Maintenance Audit: Reason: Conducted By:		• •	•	
Site Code: Lead Business Unit: Site Type: Requires Maintenance Audit: Reason: Conducted By: EC Licence Number:	C Yes (? No	• •	·	
Site Code: Lead Business Unit: Site Type: Requires Maintenance Audit: Reason: Conducted By: Ec Licence Number: Lead Technologist:		• •	•	
Site Code: Lead Business Unit: Site Type: Requires Maintenance Audit: Reason: Conducted By: EC Licence Number: Lead Technologist: Postal Code:	•	• •	•	
Site Code: Lead Business Unit: Site Type: Requires Maintenance Audit: Reason: Conducted By: Ec Licence Number: Lead Technologist:	C Yes (? No	• •	•	
Site Code: Lead Business Unit: Site Type: Requires Maintenance Audit: Reason: Conducted By: EC Licence Number: Lead Technologist: Postal Code:	•	• •	•	Add another

#### Figure 2-3 Create Supplier/Site Page

Table 2-1 describes the fields used to add a new supplier.

Table 2-1	Add a New Supplier Fields
-----------	---------------------------

Field	Description			
Supplier Name	Name of the supplier to be added. Mandatory field.			
Supplier Code	Identifies the supplier account. Mandatory field.			
	Depending on the Registration system parameter settings, the code may be automatically assigned by the system, may be automatically assigned and the user permitted to change it, or be manually entered by the user on creation of the account.			
	The format of a supplier code is a letter followed by a 4-digit sequence number with leading zeroes. The supplier codes start from the letter A and 0001. For example, A0001, A0002, and so on.			
	Only retailer users with edit access to Supplier records may change the code (where permitted); validation ensures the code is unique.			
Contact Name	Name to be assigned to the first supplier user created. Mandatory field.			
Language	Language of the initial supplier user. The language is selected from the list of languages supported for the module. This value defaults to the module's base language.			
	Text is presented in the selected language when the user logs in to complete the registration process and in the initial registration request email.			
Supplier Email	An email is sent to this address inviting the first supplier user to complete the registration process. Mandatory field.			
Confirm Email	Supplier email address reentered for confirmation. Mandatory field.			
Lead Business Unit	Classification of the supplier. Mandatory field.			



Field	Description	
Supplier Type	Select the type of supplier from the drop-down list. Mandatory fi	
Potential Supplier?	Setting that determines if this supplier is a potential supplier. Potential suppliers are billed when their first site is approved, rather than when registration is completed. The default is No. Mandatory field.	
Billing Code	An optional field to assign a billing classification to the supplier. Selection is made from the Billing Codes glossary, but has no functional use within the system.	

 Table 2-1
 (Cont.) Add a New Supplier Fields

Table 2-2 describes the fields used to define a site for the new supplier.

Field	Description			
Site Name	Name of the site to be added. Mandatory field.			
Site Code	Identifies the site account. Mandatory field.			
	Depending on the Registration system parameter settings, the code may be automatically assigned by the system, may be automatically assigned and the user permitted to change it, or be manually entered by the user on creation of the account.			
	Other Registration system parameters control the format of the site code and whether it must be unique across the entire portal, or just within its supplier account.			
	The default coding method generates a 4-digit sequence number with leading zeroes, starting from 0001. For example, 0001, 0002, and so on; however, an alpha alternative sequencing such as AAAA, AAAB, and so on, may be used.			
	The site code may also be automatically prefixed with the supplier code, such as A0001-0001.			
	Only retailer users with edit access to Site records may change the code (where permitted); validation ensures the code is suitably unique.			
Lead Business Unit	Classification of the supplier.			
Site Type	Select the type of site from the drop-down list. Mandatory field.			
Requires Maintenance Audit	Settings that determines if a maintenance audit is required. The default is No.			
Reason	Select a reason for the maintenance audit.			
Conducted By	Name of the person who conducts the maintenance audit.			
EC License Number	License number for the site location.			
Lead Technologist	Name of the lead technologist for the site location. Mandatory field.			
Postal Code	Postal code for this site location.			
Site Categories	Select the business category associated with this site. Mandatory field.			

Table 2-2 Add a New Site Fields

To add a new supplier:



- **1.** Enter the information for the new supplier. For a description of the fields, see Table 2-1.
- 2. Enter the information for a site for the supplier. For a description of the fields, see Table 2-2.
- **3.** If additional sites are needed, click **Add another site**. An additional section for information for that site appears. See Step 2.
- 4. When all the information is added, click **Finished**. The supplier and site information is validated.

If any site within the system contains the same value found within the Postal Code or EC Licence Number fields, the following mandatory field must be completed. The information entered for this field is added to the site's comment field.

Figure 2-4 Reason for This Site Request Field

Reason For This Site Request:	_	*
	-	

5. If no errors are found, the Confirmation page appears.

Figure 2-5	Add a New Supplier Confirmation Page
------------	--------------------------------------

Details			
Add a new Supplier			
Your request has been generated.			
An email notification has been sent to	o ggg@org.com.		
B SUPPLIER DETAILS			
Supplier Name:	Magic		
Supplier Code:	A0009		
e-mail address:	ggg@org.com		
Billing Code:	medium		
B Site Details			
Site Name:	Magic Site 1		
Site Code:	A0009-0001		
Postal Code:			
Lead Technical Manager:	P. Techie		
Site Categories:			
		Add another Supplier	Edit Supplier Details

- To add another supplier, click Add another Supplier. See Step 1.
- To edit the details shown on the confirmation page, click **Edit Supplier Details**. A tab is opened in edit mode for this supplier.

Upon completion of the registration request, the following is done:

- A Supplier record is created for the supplier with the status set to Awaiting Registration.
- A Site record is created for each site with the status set to Awaiting Registration.
- A User and Person record is created for the supplier contact, using the contact name and email address:



- The User record has the job role set to Supplier Administrator.
- The online help option is set to enabled so that any help text is available when the user initially logs in to complete the registration process.
- The user's language is set to the language selected in the registration request or the default language if none was selected.
- The EC Licence Number is assigned to the Certificate Number field within the References table against the Reference Type called EC Licence Number.
- A Logon ID is generated from the User Name field. If a person with the same Logon ID exists, an incremental number is added to the end until the Logon ID becomes unique.
- The corresponding IDCS or OCI IAM user profile is created; the user will receive an email, instructing them to set their password in IDCS or OCI IAM.

### Viewing Registration Requests

The retailer user can view a list of all registration requests that are waiting to be completed by the supplier by selecting Supplier/Sites and then the Site Awaiting Registration view. Figure 2-6 shows an example of the list.

the search criteria	Advanced Search					Sites Awating Registration	
Site Name +	Site Code	Supplier Name	Country	Lead Technologist	Site Status		
Test Site	A0005-0001	Test Supplier		Julian	Amailing Registration		

#### Figure 2-6 View Registration Requests

The retailer can send a reminder email message to any suppliers who have yet to complete the registration. To send the reminder, select the Re-send Registration Request action. The email message is not sent if the supplier has already registered.

### Accepting the Registration

To accept the registration request:

 In the request email message, select the link and log in using the user ID and password.



myOwnBrandLogo	
	Please enter your supplier code. This is the code you received from your technologist
Welcome to Core 0_3. There are 5 steps to register. You are at step 1.	Welcome to the Core 0_3
> 1. Enter your supplier code	When you sign up to the Core 0_3 you will benefit from a dedicated system created to help you manage your site and product information in an effective way. This will provide you with many advantages, such as:
2. Enter your company details	The Document Area, which includes the Technical Policies and Codes of Practice.
3. Enter your billing details	<ul> <li>The Audits &amp; Visits process, which records and tracks the progress and status of your site Audits and Visits. This provides you with access to monitor and follow up non conformances and for Core 0_3 to close the Audit or Visit once it is complete.</li> </ul>
4. Enter your contact details	<ul> <li>An interactive Alerts system, which provides a method for Core 0_3 to communicate and collect responses to urgent consumer scares and issues and provide your site with important technical</li> </ul>
5. Accept the terms and conditions	information. • Access to the Product Specification process, which includes: • Multiple format specifications to accommodate food and non-food products • Generation of Pack Copy, which is electronically issued to artwork companies to provide on-pack labelling requirements
	<ul> <li>Online validation, to ensure product specifications conform to Core 0_3 rules prior to submission for approval by a Technologist</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>The Core 0_3 can also import specifications that have been created using certain Recipe Management Systems (RMS)</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>The Homepage, which includes your personal task list and news items that Core 0_3 want you to be aware of, please check these news items every time you logon.</li> </ul>
	If you are having trouble with the registration process please call the Core 0_3 helpline on +44 845 602 9731 or alternatively e-mail
	Cancel Registration Next Step >>

#### Figure 2-7 Registration Page

There are five steps in the process. The current step is displayed in bold.

2. Enter the unique supplier code and select **Next Step**.

If the entered supplier code is not valid, the Validation Errors dialog box appears. Select **Cancel** and reenter the supplier code.

#### Note:

The supplier code is communicated to the initial supplier user outside of the system, usually through a phone call or letter. This acts as a security measure. If the auto-generated e-mail is intercepted, access cannot be gained without the supplier code.

3. Enter the company details. The registered company name is mandatory. Select **Next Step**.



Figure 2-8	Company	Details
------------	---------	---------

Registered company number:			*	
VAT number:				
Head office add	dress			
Country:		~		
Address 1:				
Address 2:				
City:				
County:				
Postal/Zip Code:				
GPS latitude:				
A Charles	ì			• •
			Cancel Registration	Next Step >>

4. Enter the billing details. To copy the corporate address for the company as the billing address, select **Copy company address**. Select **Next Step**.

#### Figure 2-9 Billing Details

Individual or department bills should be addressed to:		at	
Billing Address			
Country:	*		
Address 1:			
Address 2:			
City:			
County:			
Postal/Zip Code:			
GPS latitude:			
GPS longitude:	<u>201</u>		
			Copy company address



5. Enter the contact details. The company contact details are mandatory. To use the same company contact details as the billing contact details, select **Copy company contact details**. Select **Next Step**.



Company contact deta	ails			
This is the person we will contact	for general enquiries			
Name:	Fred		*	
Telephone number:		*		
Fax number:		*		
Email:	magic@org.com		*	
Confirm Email:	magic@org.com		*	
Billing contact details				
This is the person we will contact	with any specific billing enquiri	es		
Name:				
Telephone number:				
Fax number:				
Email:				
			c	Copy company contact details

#### Figure 2-10 Company Contact Details

- 6. Accept the terms and conditions:
  - a. If required to accept the terms and conditions, check the box. You may choose to view the terms and conditions in any of the supported languages.

<< Previous Step

Cancel Registration

Next Step >>

- b. Under Other Information, enter the purchase order number.
- c. Under Data Protection, check to box if you do not wish to receive information on software and services.
- d. Select Accept.

To log out without completing the process, select the log out link at the top of the window. The details on the previous windows are validated and saved. The user is logged out.



#### Figure 2-11 Accept Terms and Conditions

#### Log out (your progress will be save Please check your details and accept the terms and conditions There are 5 steps to register. You Will Be Charged £5000 To Register 1 Site You are at step 5. Company Details Magic Supplier Name: 1. Enter your supplier code Registered company rtetertert 2. Enter your company details number: VAT number: 3. Enter your billing details Country: Address 1: 4. Enter your contact details Address 2: City: > 5. Accept the terms and conditions County: Postal/Zip Code: - 🔯 **GPS** latitude: GPS longitude: - 101 Billing Details Individual or department bills should be addressed to: ghjghjghjh Country: Address 1: Address 2: City: County: Postal/Zip Code: - 🧕 GPS latitude: GPS longitude: - 💽 B Company Contact Fred Name: Telephone number: 4534534 Fax number: 345345 Email: magic@org.com Billing Contact Name: Fred Telephone number: Fax number: magic@org.com Email: Switch language of Ts & Cs: English (British) ~ I accept the TERMS AND CONDITIONS Other Information (including purchase order number) Please enter your purchase order number and any other information in the box below \* **Data Protection** Micros Retail & Manufacturing Ltd. takes the protection of your personal data seriously. We will hold and process any personal information which you provide to us on the Site in order to facilitate and enhance the services which we provide to you. We may als use such information for the purposes of market research and direct marketing. We may from time to time make your personal information available to other Micros Retail & Manufacturing Ltd. partners and group companies and other carefully selected third parties. We or other such trustworthy third parties may, from time to time, contact you for the purposes of market research or to provide details of services which may be of interest to you. Please tick this box if you do NOT wish Micros Retail & Manufacturing Ltd. to send you information about other software and services which may be of interest to you. 4 • << Previous Step Cancel Registration Accept

Once Accept is selected, the acceptance process completes:

The site status is set to Awaiting Approval.

#### Approving the Registration

Once registered, a site must be approved by the Technologist before the account is fully functional.

When the supplier completes the registration process, the Technologist responsible for the site is notified that the approval is needed. Notification may be made using email or with a task in the Technologist's Task App. For information on Task App, see the *Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service User Guide*.



In the email message or task, a link is provided to the Sites Awaiting Approval view. This view lists all sites with the Awaiting Approval status.

Figure 2-12 Sites Awaiting Approval

Site Code         Supplier Name         Country         Lead Technologist         Last Audit         Last Audit         Last Audit Score         Last Visit Score           Magic Site 1         A0006-0001         Magic Supplier 1         -         Angelo         -         -         -		🔍 🧔 Advanced Sea	rch Search Results						Sites Awaiting Approv	/al
Magic Site 1 A0006-0001 Magic Supplier 1 - Angelo	e Name 🔺	Site Code	Supplier Name	Country	Lead Technologist	Last Audit	Last Visit	Last Audit Score	Last Visit Score	
	gic Site 1	A0006-0001	Magic Supplier 1	-	Angelo	-	-	-	-	

From this view, the Technologist can approve sites individually or approve a number with a single action. To approve a number of sites, select each sites and then select the Set To Active action. If the status change fails for one or more of the selected sites, an error dialog box appears.

There may be cases where the retailer believes that the supplier has not met the necessary standards and elects to reject the supplier. This is done by setting the status of the sites to Unapproved. This can be done by opening the record in Edit mode and selecting the Set to Unapproved action.

### Completing the Approval of the Site

When one site or multiple sites are set to Active, the Site Status Change dialog box appears.



Site status change	
C3-0858 00178 C3-0859 00179 C3-1038 001802	×
Please enter a comment	t regarding this status change
	*
B Schedule Aud	lit
Schedule audit:	Yes ○ No     No
Template:	Scorable Standard Food a 💙
Announced:	
Audit date:	17/07/12
Lead Business Category:	*
Business Categories	- *
	Ok Cancel

Table 2-3 describes the fields in the Site Status Change dialog box.

Table 2-3 Site Status Change Fields

Field	Description
Sites	When multiple sites are selected, the supplier and site codes are listed in ascending order by the site code.
Comment	Enter a comment describing the status change. Mandatory field.
Schedule Audit	Used to select whether the initial audit is to be scheduled for each of the sites being approved.
Template	Select the type of audit from the drop-down list.
Announced	Select whether the audit is announced. The default is set based on the selected type of audit in the Template field. If Optional or no value was selected for Template, the user must select Yes or No.



Field	Description
Audit Date	Due date of the audit calculated based on the default of the selected audit template.
Lead Business Category	If the audit type requires a business category, Lead Business Category must be selected. Mandatory field.
Business Categories	If the audit type requires a business category, Business Categories must be selected. Mandatory field.

Table 2-3	(Cont.) Site Status Ch	ange Fields
-----------	------------------------	-------------

After making all the selections, select Ok:

- The selected sites are set to Active.
- The entered comments are appended to the site's comments field.
- The Change History log is updated.
- If the option to schedule an audit was selected, an audit is created for the selected type against the site with the announced/unannounced flag and due date set as appropriate. The Lead Technologist and Business Category are carried through to the Audit record.
- When the first site of a potential supplier is approved, the Order record is updated to set the status to Unprocessed. For potential suppliers, this is done as part of the approval process rather than when the supplier completes the registration process.

## Adding Additional Sites

When additional sites are required for a supplier, a Retailer user can add the additional sites. To add an additional site:

- **1.** Select the Suppliers option from the Supplier drop-down list. The Suppliers tab opens.
- 2. Double-click the supplier name. A tab opens for that suppliers
- **3.** Select the Sites subtab. The Sites page opens. This page lists the sites defined for the supplier.
- 4. Select the New Site action. The New Site tab opens.



<ul> <li>Supplier Details</li> <li>Supplier Name:</li> </ul>	AR Supplier
Supplier Code:	A0001
Contact Name:	John Smith
Supplier Email:	j.smith@example.com
Lead Business Unit:	UK
Supplier Type:	Supplier Type
Potential Supplier?:	No
Billing Code:	medium
Add Site Site Name:	*
	Clear all site field
	*
Site Code:	A0001-0002 *
Lead Business Unit:	
	<b>V</b>
Site Type:	*
Requires Maintenance Audit:	C Yes  No
Reason:	×
Conducted By:	
EC Licence Number:	
Lead Technologist:	*
Postal Code:	
Site Categories:	*
	Add anothe

#### Figure 2-14 New Site Page

The Supplier Details section is filled in with the details of the selected supplier. These fields are read only.

- 5. In the Add Site section, enter the details for the new site. The Site Code is generated by the system and cannot be changed. For information on these fields, see Table 2-2.
- 6. To add another site, click **Add another Site**. Another Add Site section is added to the page.
- 7. When you have finished entering the new sites, click **Finished**. The new site records are assigned to the Awaiting Registration status. For information on registering the new sites, see Registration.

#### Note:

Additional sites do not need to go through the full registration process. The additional sites just need to be approved.



## **Deleting Suppliers and Sites**

If a supplier/site account has been created in error or was created and never used, administrator users with the Power Administrator authority profile may delete the supplier and site accounts, but only where there are no associated records such as Products, Specifications, Audits, and so on. For more information, see the *Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service Administration Guide*.



## 3 Site Management

To work with sites, select the Sites option from the Supplier drop-down list. The Sites tab opens. This page shows the list of available sites.

#### Figure 3-1 Sites Page

Ent	er search criteria 🛛 🔍 🧔 🤹 /	Advanced Se	arch						Default	
	Site Name 🔺	Site Code	Supplier Name	Country	Lead Technologist	Site Status	Last Audi	Last Visit	Last Audit Sc	Last Visit Scor
	DB Test Supplier A - Site 1	A0002- 0001	DB Test Supplier A	United Kingdom	Product Technologist	Active	-	-	-	-
	DB Test Supplier A - Site 2	A0002- 0002	DB Test Supplier A	United Kingdom	Product Technologist	Active	-	-	-	-
	DB Test Supplier A - Site 3	A0002- 0003	DB Test Supplier A	United Kingdom	Product Technologist	Active	-	-	-	-
	Test Site	A0005- 0001	Test Supplier	-	Julian	Awaiting Registration	-	-	-	-
	TM Site	A0001- 0001	TM Supplier	-	Angelo	Awaiting Approval	-	-	-	-
	TM Site 2	A0001- 0002	TM Supplier	-	TM Tech	Awaiting Approval	-	-	-	-
	TM Site 3	A0001- 0003	TM Supplier	-	TM Tech	Awaiting Approval	-		-	-
	VH Test Supplier 1 - Site 1	A0003- 0001	VH Test Supplier 1	United Kingdom	Vikas	Active	10/12/14	-	-	-

The following actions are available:

- New Alert: For information on creating a new alert, see Alerts Management.
- Change Status: Select one or more sites from the list and select the Change Status action. Select the new status for the sites from the list. Only Retailer users can change the status.

If delisting a site, a check is made for any associated active Product Specifications or Product Records. If any are found, they are listed, with the option to continue or exit. Consider deactivating or archiving any listed before delisting the site.

To see the details for a specific site, double-click the row. A tab opens with the details. You can also select the View or Edit actions.



#### Figure 3-2 Site Details Page

🍨 Home Page	🛗 Sites 🕱 📑 DB	Test Supplier A 🛛 🕱					
DB Test Supplier A							
Actions 🔱						DB Test S	upplier A - Site 1 🌟 📒
Site Details	Contacts	Product Records	Specifications	Audits & Visits	Scorecards	Linked Sites (0)	Sourcing Details
Details							
Supplier Name:		DB Test Supplier A					
Site Name:		DB Test Supplier A -	Site 1				
Site Code:		A0002-0001		Site Status:		Active	
Site Type:		Site Type 📃 *					
Phone:		0123 456789		Fax:		0987 564321	
Site Top Grade:			~	Site GLN:			*
Other							
Comments:							×
Address							
Use Supplier Addres	is?:	Yes					
Local Address							
Country:		United Kingdom					
Address 1:		Apex House, Apex Bu	isiness Park				
Address 2:		Ruddington Lane					
City:		Nottingham					
County:		Nottinghamshire					
Post Code:		NG11 7DD 🚺					
GPS latitude:		1.234500					
GPS longitude:		9.876500 🙋					
Categories							
Categories:		Category Level 1 / Ca	ategory Level 2a 🛄 *				
Lead Technologist:		Product Technologist	***				
Other Technologists	:						
Business Unit:		UK	*				

The following subtabs are available. Select a subtab to see the information for the site:

Site Details

#### Note:

Site GLN may be configured to be mandatory, to be of a specific format (such as 13 digits), and to include check digit validation.

- Contacts: List of contacts for the site.
- Product Records: If Product is purchased and implemented, list of product records.
- Specifications: List of product specification documents and the status.
- Audits & Visits: List of audits and visits and the status.
- Scorecards: List of scorecards and status.
- Linked Sites: The number of linked sites is shown in parentheses on the subtab.
- Sourcing Details: Billing and production details.
- References: List of certificates and the status.
- Project Links: If Project is purchased and implemented, list of projects and status.
- Custom Fields
- Change History
- Attachments: List of documents attached to the site.



The following actions are available:

- New Audit: For information on creating a new audit, see Audits & Visits.
- New Visit: For information on creating a new visit, see Audits & Visits.
- New Scorecard: For information on creating a new scorecard, see Scorecard Management.

## 4 Contacts Management

This chapter covers managing contacts:

- Contacts are usually created by a Supplier user, however Retailer users can be granted the Supplier Contacts Administrator authority profile to allow them to create contacts.
- Contacts are created by the Supplier users that have the Supplier Administrator or Site Administrator roles/authority profiles.
- Supplier users access contacts through the Contacts tab on their Company /Company Details record and their Site records. They only have visibility to the contacts in their organization and only the sites with which they are associated.
- Retailer users access contacts through the Supplier/Contacts list view or Contacts tab in the individual supplier and site records. They have visibility to all contacts for all suppliers and sites.
- Contacts can be assigned to the supplier and/or the site by creating a single contact record and assigning the relevant roles. Site contacts can be assigned to all or just specific sites, however when they are created as a user, they may have been associated to specific sites, in which case they would only be able to be a contact for those sites.
- A contact may or may not be a user of the system. This allows, for example, a contact of a CEO to be created for reference purposes without the need to set them up as a user of the system.
- When a contact is created, the pick-list allows an existing user of the system or the name of a non-user to be selected.
- The set of contact roles is configurable. Each portal can build their own set of roles that contacts are to be recorded for at the supplier and site levels:
  - The roles may be set as mandatory, in which case, a contact must be assigned to that role for the supplier/site account to be approved.
  - Some roles are mandatory because they are used by the system to automatically notify the relevant users as part of the system's workflow. For example, a Specification Main Contact would be notified when a product specification requires action.
  - Where there are mandatory roles that have not been assigned a contact, the supplier/site administrator is alerted through the Urgent Item Manager (UIM) app.

This chapter covers the following topics:

- Creating a Contact
- Editing a Contact
- Deleting a Contact

## **Creating a Contact**

A contact can be created starting either from the supplier or site record. To create a new contact:



**1**. Select the New Contact action. The Contact Details page appears.

🔄 Home Page 📑	Abacus Trading 🛛 🕱
Abacus Trading 🛛 🔿 Ne	ew Contact X
Actions 🐶	
Contact Details Change	e History
B DETAILS	
Name:	Jenny Smith 💌 * Clear
Email:	js@org.com *
Alternate Email:	
Mobile Phone Number:	
Phone Number:	6546464 *
Fax:	
Job Title:	
Is this contact a Supplier Contact:	Yes
Supplier Contact Roles:	
Is this contact a Site Contact:	© Yes © No
Site Selection:	Selected Sites
Sites:	
Site Contact Roles:	Artwork approver 🛄
Comments:	X

Figure 4-1 Contact Details Page for Creating a New Contact

Table 4-1 describes the fields in this page.

Table 4-1 Contact Details Fields for Adding a New Contac	Table 4-1	Contact Details Fields for Adding a New Contact
--	-----------	---

Field	Description
Name	Enter a name or select a name from the drop-down list. Mandatory field.
Email	Enter the email address for this contact. Mandatory field.
Alternate Email	Enter an alternate email address, if available.
Mobile Phone Number	Enter a mobile phone number, if available.
Phone Number	Enter the phone number for this contact. Mandatory field.
Fax	Enter a fax number, if available.
Job Title	Enter a job title, if available.



Field	Description
Is this contact a Supplier Contact	<ul> <li>When creating a contact from the Supplier record, this field is set to Yes.</li> <li>When creating a contact from the Site record, this field is set to No.</li> </ul>
Supplier Contact Roles	Select the supplier-level roles for this contact from the list of available roles. This field is only available when creating a contact from the Supplier record. Mandatory field.
Is this contact a Site Contact	<ul> <li>When creating a contact from the Supplier record, this field is set to No.</li> <li>When creating a contact from the Site record, this field is set to Yes.</li> </ul>
Site Selection	<ul> <li>When set to Selected Sites, the sites must be chosen in the Selected Sites field.</li> <li>When set to All Sites, this contact is used for all sites for this supplier, including any sites added later.</li> </ul>
Selected Sites	Select the sites to be assigned to the contact. This field is only displayed when Site Selection field is set to Selected Sites. Mandatory field.
Site Contact Roles	Select the site-level roles for this contact from the list of available roles. This field is only available when creating a contact from the Site record. Mandatory field.
Comments	Enter any comments.
Address	If a name is selected from the list of users, the address is automatically filled in:
	<ul> <li>When creating a contact from the Supplier record, this field is set to the supplier address.</li> <li>When creating a contact from the Site record, this field is set to the site address.</li> </ul>

#### Table 4-1 (Cont.) Contact Details Fields for Adding a New Contact

2. Enter the information for this contact. When all the information is entered, select the Save action. The new contact is created.

## **Editing a Contact**

Supplier users can edit supplier contacts and site contacts. Site users can only edit site contacts.

#### **Editing a Supplier Contact**

To edit a supplier contact:

**1.** Navigate to the contact record. Select Company, Company Details, and then Contacts. The Contacts page appears.



Iconera U.K. Ltd							
Actions	₽						
Company Details	Contacts	Sites	Product Records	Change History	Attachments		
Actions	<u>4</u>						
Name 🛩		Supplier Contact Role			Phone	Email Address:	User
Ben Short		Head	ing Director or Ch of technical functio ct development m	in	121 2321313132	ben@org.com	×
Suzanne Hall Specification admin contact		0123456789	110376@example.com	<b>v</b>			
Terry Booth Head of technical function		3131 454546646	tb@org.com	~			

#### Figure 4-2 Supplier Contacts Page

- 2. Select the relevant contact.
- 3. Select the Edit action. The Contact Details appear.
- 4. Make any needed updates and select the Save action.

#### **Editing a Site Contact**

To edit a site contact:

- 1. Navigate to the contact record. Select Company, Company Details, and then Sites. The Sites page appears.
- 2. Select Contacts. The Contacts page appears.

#### Figure 4-3 Site Contacts Page

	-									
Actions	₽									
ite Details	Contacts	Product Records	Specifications	Audits & Visits	Scorecards	Sourcing Details	References	Project Links	Change History	Attachment
Actions	- ¢									
Name 🕶	Sup	pplier Contact Role	Site Co	ntact Role		Phone No.	Email		User	
Suzanne Ha	all		Specific Head of	ncy Contact ation admin cor manufacturing approver		9876543210	<u>110376@</u>	example.com	~	
Tom Short		Head of	Specification admin contact Head of manufacturing operations Artwork approver		4445 8787888	4445 8787888 <u>ts@orq.com</u>		×		
will			Head of Artwork	ation admin cor manufacturing approver technical functi	operations	34534534	<u>will@org.</u> (	<u>com</u>	<b>V</b>	

- 3. Select the relevant contact.
- 4. Select the Edit action. The Contact Details appear.
- 5. Make any needed updates and select the Save action.

## **Deleting a Contact**

Supplier users can delete supplier contacts and site contacts. Site users can only delete site contacts.

#### **Deleting a Supplier Contact**

To delete a supplier contact:

1. Navigate to the contact record. Select Company, Company Details, and then Contacts. The Contacts page appears. See Figure 4-2.



- 2. Select the relevant contact.
- 3. Select the Edit action. The Contact Details appear.
- 4. Select the Delete action. The Delete Contact dialog box appears. To confirm the deletion, select **Ok**.

#### Note:

This could result in sites losing a mandatory contact as this contact may be a supplier-level contact that has been set as a contact covering one or more sites. Site users logging in see an action in the Urgent Items Manager stating that a mandatory contact is missing. For more information on the Urgent Items Manager, see the *Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service User Guide*.

#### **Deleting a Site Contact**

To delete a site contact:

- **1.** Navigate to the contact record. Select Company, Company Details, and then Sites.The Sites page appears.
- 2. Select Contacts. The Contacts page appears. See Figure 4-3.
- 3. Select the relevant contact.
- 4. Select the Edit action. The Contact Details appear.
- 5. Select the Delete action. The Delete Contact dialog box appears. To confirm the deletion, select **Ok**.



## 5 Alerts Management

Alerts are a means of communication between the retailer and its supplier base for the management of urgent issues, such as food scares, and capture of feedback using a customized form, for example, whether the supplier uses a particular ingredient or process in the manufacture of its products. Alerts can be created from the list of Alerts or from the lists of Suppliers or Sites. Alerts are distributed using email and can be targeted at specific sets of suppliers and their manufacturing sites.

This chapter covers managing and responding to alerts.

## **Managing Alerts**

To manage alerts, select the Alerts action. The Alerts tab opens.

Actions	<b>₽</b>				Alerts 🕇
nter search crit	teria 🔍 🦻 🤔 Ad	vanced Search		Default	~
Status 🔺	Created By	Date Issued	Title		
Sent	Patrick	25/02/15	Query on Cumin		
Unsent	Angelo	Unsent	Test Alert		

#### Figure 5-1 Alerts Page

For each alert, the following information appears:

- Status of the alert.
- Name of the user who created the alert.
- Date the alert was issued or Unsent.
- Title of the alert.

### Create a New Alert

An alert can be created starting either from the Suppliers or Sites tab. To create an alert, select the New Alert action. The New Alert tab opens.



#### Figure 5-2 New Alert Page

	New Alert		
New Alert			
Actions 🗘 Alert Details Recipient	ts Questions	Responses Custom Fields	Change History Attachments
Details			
Title:			*
Description:			*
Response Required By:	03/03/15	Time (Optional):	~
		Urgent:	
Status:	Unsent		
Select From:	Sites ○Suppliers ○Su	ppliers & Sites *	
Site Contact Roles:			
Requires Acknowledgment:	O <sup>Yes</sup> ⊛ <sup>No</sup>		
Automatic Reminders			
Send Reminder:		⊖Yes (€No	

Table 5-1 describes the fields on this page.

Field	Description			
Title	Title displayed for the alert. Mandatory field.			
Description	Description of the alert. Mandatory field.			
Response Required By	Date by which responses must be returned. Mandatory field.			
Time (Optional)	Time by which responses must be returned on the due date. Optional field.			
Urgent	Check this box if the alert should be marked as urgent in email and response views.			
Status	Status of the alert, for example, Sent or Unsent.			
Select From	Select to target suppliers, sites, or both for this alert. Mandatory field.			
Site Contact Roles	List of site contact roles that can respond to this alert. Field not shown if suppliers is selected in the Select From field.			
Requires Acknowledgement	Check this box if an acknowledgement is required from the supplier.			
Send Reminder	If Yes is selected, the Frequency and Send Reminders Until fields appear. Select how often to send a reminder and an ending date for reminders. An end date is required.			

#### Table 5-1 New Alert Tab

The following subtabs are available:

- Alert Details
- Recipients: List of users who receive notification when the alert is created.
- Questions: Set of questions that need to be responded to.
- Responses: List of responses to this alert.
- Custom Fields



- Change History
- Attachments: List of documents attached to the alert.

The following actions are available:

- Create Mailing List
- Load Mailing List
- Import Recipients
- Save and Send

For information on mailing lists, see the Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service Management Administration Guide.

## View or Edit an Existing Alert

Select an alert on the Alerts page. Select the View or Edit action. A tab opens for the selected alert.

#### Figure 5-3 Alert Details Page

Home Page 🔡 Alerts 🗶 📑 Qu	ery on Cumin 🛛					
					Alert 鴂 🚺	
Alert Details Recipients	Questions	Responses	Custom Fields	Change History	Attachments	
B Details						
Title:	Query on Cumin					
Description:	test					
Response Required By:	25/02/15	Time (Opt	ional):	12:00		
		Urgent:	Urgent: Yes			
Status:	Sent					
Select From:	Sites					
Site Contact Roles:	Crisis management primary con Emergency Contact Main Contact Head of product quality Specification admin contact Audits and visits contact Out of hours contact Account manager or sales & min Managing Director or Chief Exer	arketing contact				
Requires Acknowledgment:	Yes	Block Res	ponses:	No		
Automatic Reminders						
Send Reminder:	©Yes ⊖No					
Frequency:	Daily 💙	Send Rem	inders Until:	28/03/15	•	

For information on these fields and subtabs, see Create a New Alert.

To see the question details, select the Questions subtab. The retailer user sees the table of the question details (the Alert Questions field-set) and a preview of how they will be presented to the supplier user (the Alert Answers field-set).



Aler	t Details	Recipients	Questions	Responses	Custom Fields	Change History	Attachments
8		t Questions	accounts	responses	0001011110100	onongo motory	, and the second s
				-			
		ion / Answer		Туре			
1	When d	designing an Alert, Question res	ponses may be free text	Text			
2	Yes (Wh for certa	o buttons, requiring a single res hen designing an Alert, the Con tain responses; in this case, the tory Comment.)	ments can be made mand	Radio atory			
3	A B C (simil	ck box style, enabling multiple of lar to radio button responses, it ents to be given for certain chec	can be made mandatory fo	Checkbox pr			
8	Alert	t Answers					
	0	buttons, requiring a single respo Yes (When designing an Aler, Comments can be made mano certain responses; in this case response requires a mandator No Maybe box style, enabling multiple opt A B C (similar to radio button resp be made mandatory for Comn given for certain check box re	the latory for s, the 'Yes' y Comment.) ions to be given nonses, it can tents to be	$\bigcirc$			

#### Figure 5-4 Alert Questions Page

# **Responding to Alerts**

To manage the responses to alerts, select the Alert Responses action. The Alert Responses tab opens.

Figure 5-5 Alert Responses Page

er search criteria	🔍 🧔 🤣 Advanced Search				Default
Alert Date 🔻	Title	Status	Supplier Name	Site Name	Responded On
25/02/15	Query on Cumin	×O	Test Supplier	Test Site	-
25/02/15	Query on Cumin	×O	TM Supplier	TM Site	-
25/02/15	Query on Cumin	×O	TM Supplier	TM Site 2	-
25/02/15	Query on Cumin	×O	TM Supplier	TM Site 3	-
25/02/15	Query on Cumin	×O	VH Test Supplier 1	VH Test Supplier 1 - Site 1	-
25/02/15	Query on Cumin	<€	DB Test Supplier A	DB Test Supplier A - Site 1	25/02/15
25/02/15	Query on Cumin	<€	DB Test Supplier A	DB Test Supplier A - Site 2	25/02/15
25/02/15	Query on Cumin	<€	DB Test Supplier A	DB Test Supplier A - Site 3	25/02/15



Table 5-2 describes the columns in this page.

	Description			
Field	Description			
Alert Date	Date the alert was created.			
Title	Title of the alert.			
Status	Status of the alert:			
	×			
	Response is needed.			
	✓			
Response received.				
	•			
	Urgent alert item.			
	8			
	No response needed.			
Supplier Name	Name of the supplier that issued the response.			
Site Name	Name of the site that issued the response.			
Responded On	Date when a response was submitted.			

Table 5-2 Alert Responses

To see the details on a specific alert response, double-click the row. A tab opens with the details of the response.

#### Figure 5-6 Alert Response Details Page

🔷 Home Page 🔠	Alert Responses 🛛 📋 🕻	2uery on Cumin 🛛 🕱				
Actions 🖓						Alert Response, Query on Cumin 🌟
Alert Response Details	Questions	Change History	Attachments			
B Details						
Supplier:	DB T	est Supplier A		Response	e Required By:	25/02/15
Site:	DB T	est Supplier A - Site 3		Respond	By Time:	12:00
Responded On:	25/0	2/15		Title:		Query on Cumin
Supplier User:	Supp	lier Admin A		Status:		Responded To
Email:	dbull	@micros.com		Acknowle	edged:	Yes
Job Title:	Supp	lier Admin		Description	on:	test

# 6 Audits & Visits

Audits and visits are created against suppliers' sites and are managed between the retailer and supplier users. Issues of non-conformance may be created to manage any necessary follow-up corrective actions. Once created, a predefined workflow process is used to manage the audit/visit and any non-conformances through their lifecycle, ensuring the appropriate users are notified and given access to the relevant data in order to complete their role in the process.

Audits and Visits are created from templates. For information on the templates, see the *Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service Administration Guide*.

Audits and visits are created from within the Site record. A system parameter can be set to also allow them to be created from the list of sites.

To work with audits and visits, select the Audits & Visits option from the Supplier drop-down list. The Audits & Visits tab opens.

Figure 6-1 Audit & Visits Page

ter search crite	ria 🔍 🦻 🤔 Adv	vanced Search						Default		
Site Name	▲ Site Code	Template	Status	Due Date	Booked Date	From Date	To Date	Lead Technol	Score/Grade	
DB Test Supplier A Site 1	A0002-0001	Ethical Audit	In Progress	06/11/14	06/11/14	06/11/14	06/11/14	Product Technologist	-	
VH Test Supplier 1 Site 1	A0003-0001 -	Standard Food Audit	Completed	10/12/14	10/12/14	10/12/14	10/12/14	Vikas	-	

The following columns are shown:

- Site Name
- Site Code
- Template
- Status
- Due Date
- Booked Date
- From Date
- To Date
- Lead Technologist
- Score/Grade



To edit an entry, select the row and then the Edit action. A tab opens in edit mode. For information on the fields shown for this tab, see Table 6-1.

To view details on an audit, double-click a row. A tab opens with the details.

#### Figure 6-2 Audit Details Page

Action	ns 🖑						Ethical Audit,	DB Supplier - Site 1 🙀
Audit Detail	s Check	lists	Issues	Summary & Comments	Project Links	Custom Fields	Change History	Attachments
B Site	e Details							
iupplier Na	me:		DB Supplier		Supplier Code:		A0002	
ite Name:			DB Supplier - Site 1		Site Code:		A0002-0001	
Au	dit Details							
Code:			20001		Record Type:		Audit	
itatus:			In Progress		Template:		Ethical Audit	
Announced			No		Audit Type:		Third Party	
ead Techn	ologist:		John Smith					
8 Da	tes & Costs							
Booked Dat	te:		06/11/14		Audit Date:		From Date: 06/11/	14
							To Date: 06/11/	14
Due Date:			06/11/14		Time Spent (hours):		-	
Cost Recov	ery:		- 10					
B Pe	ople Present							
Name	Job Title	Company	Auditor					
1000000	Certification Body	AB International	Yes					

Table 6-1 describes the fields in this view.

Field	Description
Site Details	
Supplier Name	Name of the supplier.
Supplier Code	Code assigned to the supplier.
Site Name	Name of the site.
Site Code	Code assigned to the site.
Audit Details	
Code	Unique identifier of the audit/visit.
Record Type	Type of audit/visit.
Template	Template used to create the audit.
Status	Status of the audit.
Audit Type	Indicates whether this is an internal or third-party audit.
Announced	Indicates whether the supplier knows that the audit/visit is scheduled.
Lead Technologist	Retailer person responsible for the audit/visit.
Dates & Costs	
Booked Date	Date the audit/visit is expected to take place. This is optional.
Due Date	Date the audit/visit is due to be completed
Audit Date	From and to dates when the audit took place.

#### Table 6-1 Audit Details



Field	Description		
Time Spent (hours)	Time the retailer spent working on the audit/visit.		
Cost Recovery Indicates whether the cost (all or part) of the audit/ recharged to the supplier. If Yes is selected, the Co Comments field appears. The amount to be rechar entered here.			
People Present	For each person present at the audit, the following information is listed:		
	Name of the person		
	Job title		
	Company name		
	<ul> <li>Indicator if this person is an auditor</li> </ul>		

Table 6-1 (Cont.) Audit Details

The following subtabs are available:

- Audit Details
- Checklists
- Issues: List of any issues found during the audit/visit.
- Summary & Comments: Information recorded during the audit/visit.
- Project Links: If Project is purchased and implemented, list of projects and status.
- Custom Fields
- Change History
- Attachments: Documents attached to this audit/visit.

To see the list of issues from the audit/visit, select the Issues subtab.



Figure 6-3	Audit/Visit Issues Page
------------	-------------------------

Issue Details	Custom Fields	Change History	Attachments			
B Details						
Supplier Name:		DB Supplier		Site Name:	Site 1	
Audit Type:		Annual Supplier A		Status:	Open	
Issue Type:		Critical	*	Reference:	7.9 High	*
Code:		3376				
Description:			u   }=		<b>•</b>	
B Corrective	Action				<i>li</i> ,	
Required Action:				Assigned To (Name):		
				Assigned To (User):		
				Due Date:	03/26/15	
Action Taken:				Completed By (Name):		
				Completed By (User):		
				Completed Date:		
Comments						
Add a comment:		Comment:			0	
		8 Previous	Comments		·	
			reated By Comment			

The following subtabs are available. Select a subtab to see the information for the issue:

- Issue Details
- Custom Fields
- Change History
- Attachments: List of documents attached to the issue.

# Audit Updates Wizard

Auditors can be assigned or deleted from multiple internal Audit records, using the Update Auditors option, from the Audits and Visits Action menu.

## Audits & Visits Workflow

### Audit & Visit Statuses and What They Mean

All statuses are changed manually, except for the change from Scheduled to In Progress, which is set automatically once the Audit From and To Dates have been entered.



Status	Meaning	Actions Available
SCHEDULED	Initial status when an Audit or Visit is created and the Audit/Visit has not yet taken place. Supplier users have visibility and access if <i>announced</i> OR if this type of Audit/Visit can be created by the	Save Once the Audit From and To Dates are entered, saving the Audit/Visit will update the status to In Progress.
	supplier, otherwise it is only accessible to Retailer at this status.	Set to Not Progressed
	Additionally, if an <i>announced</i> Audit/Visit is created by the Retailer and the type is <i>Internal</i> , the Supplier user can only see the entry in the view, they cannot open the record at this status.	(Retailer only)
IN PROGRESS	Indicates that the Audit/Visit has now taken place. This status is set automatically once the Audit From and To Dates have been entered and the record has been saved.	Set to Awaiting Corrective Action Set to Awaiting Sign-off (Retailer only)
	The Audit/Visit and any Issues are editable. Issues can be created.	Set to Approved (Retailer only)
	Supplier users only have visibility if the Audit/Visit is announced.	Set to Failed (Retailer only)
	Supplier users may only edit/add Issues if this type of Audit/Visit can be created by Suppliers.	Set to Abandoned (Retailer only)
		<b>Delete</b> (Retailer Audit Administrator only)
AWAITING CORRECTIVE	Indicates that Corrective Actions are required to be completed.	Set to Awaiting Sign off (Supplier only)
ACTION	The Audit/Visit is locked and no further Issues may be created.	Set to Abandoned (Retailer only)
	The Issue <i>Details</i> are locked to all users. The Issue <i>Corrective Actions</i> are editable to Supplier users (not to Retailer at this status).	<b>Delete</b> (Retailer Audit Administrator only)
AWAITING SIGN-OFF	Indicates that Corrective Actions have now been completed and must be reviewed by Retailer.	Set to Approved (Retailer only)
	The Audit/Visit is locked and no further Issues may be created.	Set to Awaiting Amendment (Retailer only)
	The Issues' <i>Details</i> and <i>Corrective Actions</i> are locked to all users.	Set to In Progress
	RETAILER may edit the Issue status and Comment fields.	(Retailer only) Set to Abandoned
		(Retailer only) Delete
		(Retailer Audit Administrator only)
AWAITING AMENDMENT	Indicates that Corrective Actions have been reviewed by the Retailer, but further actions or information must be completed by the Supplier.	Set to Awaiting Sign off (Supplier only)
	The Audit/Visit is locked and no further Issues may be created.	Set to Abandoned (Retailer only)

#### Table 6-2 Audit & Visit Statuses



Status	Meaning	Actions Available
	The Issue <i>Details</i> are locked to all users. The Issue <i>Corrective Actions</i> are editable to Supplier users (not to Retailer users at this status).	<b>Delete</b> (Retailer Audit Administrator only)
FAILED	Indicates that the Audit/Visit has been completed and, even after completion of any Corrective Actions (where present), the Audit/Visit is deemed to have failed.	None
	It is possible to set the Audit/Visit to Completed but to assign a Score of <i>Failed</i> , so it is likely that the Failed Audit/Visit status would only be used in the case of a severe failure.	
	The Audit/Visit is locked to all users, except for the field for Comments Following Audit/Visit, which is editable to the Retailer.	
APPROVED	Indicates that any Corrective Actions have now been completed and approved and all activity for the Audit/ Visit is now complete.	None
	The Audit/Visit is locked to all users, except for the field for Comments Following Audit/Visit, which is editable to the Retailer.	
	The next future audit record will be created if this type of Audit/Visit has auto-scheduling enabled.	
NOT PROGRESSED	Used to indicate that the Audit/Visit may have been scheduled but circumstances mean that it did not go ahead.	<b>Delete</b> (Retailer Audit Administrator only)
	If the Audit/Visit was created erroneously, it may be deleted by an Audit Administrator, otherwise it may be left on the system as evidence that the Audit/Visit was never carried out. The Comments field can be used to record this.	
	The Audit/Visit is locked to all users, except for the field for Comments Following Audit/Visit, which is editable to the Retailer.	
ABANDONED	Used to indicate that the Audit/Visit may have proceeded to some extent, but circumstances mean that it could not be completed. This may be due to practical circumstances or the fact that the initial assessment was so unsatisfactory as to warrant the abandonment of this Audit/Visit and an alternative to be scheduled for future.	Set to In Progress (Retailer Audit Administrator only)
	The Audit/Visit is locked to all users, except for the field for Comments Following Audit/Visit, which is editable to the Retailer.	

#### Table 6-2 (Cont.) Audit & Visit Statuses



### Issue Statuses and What They Mean

#### Table 6-3 Issue Statuses

Status	Meaning	Actions Available
OPEN	Initial status when an Issue is created. Both Supplier and Retailer can edit the Issue.	Save Once the Completed By, Completed
		Date, and Corrective Action fields are entered, saving the Issue will update the status to Awaiting Approval.
AWAITING APPROVAL	Supplier user can edit the Issue if the type of audit can be created by Suppliers, otherwise only the Retailer may edit.	Accept (Retailer only, unless Suppliers may create this type of Audit/Visit)
		<b>Reject</b> (Retailer only, unless Suppliers may create this type of Audit/Visit)
REJECTED	Supplier users can edit the Issue if the type of audit can	Accept
	be created by Suppliers, otherwise only the Retailer may edit.	(Retailer only, unless Suppliers may create this type of Audit/Visit)
ACCEPTED	Supplier users can edit the Issue if the type of audit can	Reject
	be created by Suppliers, otherwise only the Retailer may edit.	(Retailer only, unless Suppliers may create this type of Audit/Visit)
COMPLETED	Final state when the Audit/Visit has been set to Completed.	None
	Cannot be edited.	

### Audit & Visit Dates and What They Mean

#### **Due Date**

The Due Date represents the date by which the Audit/Visit must have been carried out, otherwise it could be deemed to be overdue.

For the types of Audit which achieve certification, it would represent the date on which the existing certificate would expire.

The Due Date must be entered in order to create and save a new Audit or Visit.

The Due Date may be entered as either a past or future date.

The Audit/Visit will appear in the Lead Technologist's Urgent Items list if the Due Date passes before the Audit/Visit is completed.

#### **Booked Date**

The Booked Date represents the date on which the Audit/Visit will be carried out. This does not need to be entered straightaway, but can be entered at any time to indicate that arrangements have been made by the relevant parties for the Audit or Visit to take place.

This is the date you will put in your calendar.

ORACLE

The Booked Date would normally be on or before the Due Date, though the system does not restrict this as practical circumstances may prevent this from being possible.

The Booked Date may be entered as either a past or future date.

#### Audit or Visit From/To Date

The Audit or Visit From / To Dates represent the actual dates when the Audit/Visit took place. Both the From and To Dates must be entered, to indicate whether the activity took place over a number of days, but both dates may be the same if all activity happened on a single day.

The From and To Dates may not be set in the future as they should only be entered once the Audit/Visit has actually been carried out.

Once the From and To Dates have been entered (and the record is saved), the status will automatically be updated to **In Progress**, which correctly represents the activity at this time.

### Issue Dates and What They Mean

#### **Due Date**

The Due Date should be filled in to represent the date by which each corrective action is required to be completed. The Due Date will usually be arrived at in agreement between the Supplier and the Retailer Lead Technologist.

If any Issues have not been marked as completed by their Due Date, the Audit/Visit will appear in the Site's Audit & Visits Contacts' Urgent Items list and also the Urgent Items lists of any other Site users named as having the Issue assigned to them.

#### **Completed Date**

The Completed Date should be filled in by the Supplier to confirm that the corrective action has now been put in place and no further work is required.

The Completed Date may not be set in the future as they should only be entered once the corrective action has actually been carried out.

Once the Completed Date has been entered and the Issue record is saved, the status of the Issue will automatically be updated to **Completed.** 



# 7 Scorecard Management

Scorecards provide a means for a retailer to assess their suppliers against a set of predefined criteria on an on-going or ad hoc basis. Scorecards are made up of a series of questions which may be answered by the suppler as a self-assessment or completed by the retailer.

Templates are available for creating scorecards. For information on the templates, see the *Oracle Retail Brand Compliance Management Cloud Service Administration Guide*. Scorecards can be created from within the Site record or from the list of Sites.

To work with scorecards, select the Scorecards option from the Supplier drop-down list. The Retailer Scorecards tab opens. The following information is displayed for each scorecard:

- Supplier Name
- Supplier Code
- Site Name
- Site Code
- Status
- Year
- Period
- Due Date
- Scorecard Type
- Person Responsible
- Completed
- Scorecard Score

To view a scorecard, double-click a row in the list. A tab opens with the scorecard details.

#### Figure 7-1 Scorecard Details Page

Details	Questions	Scoring & Completion	Project Links	Custom Fields	Attachments	Change History	
B Site Deta	ils						
Supplier Name: Academy		Supplier Code:		A0001	A0001		
Site Name:	ite Name: <u>Academy</u>		Site Code:		A0001-0004	A0001-0004	
B Scorecar	d Details						
Scorecard Type:		Pre-audit question	naire	Extra Sco	recard:	No	
Status:		In progress		Frequenc	y:	Period	
Due Date:		31/03/11		Person R	esponsible:	Technical Admin	*
/ear:		2011		Business	Category:	- 🛄	
Period:		1		Week:		2	
Completed By:		-		Complete	d On:	-	

Table 7-1 describes the fields on this page:



Field	Description
Site Details	•••
Supplier Name	Name of the supplier.
Supplier Code	Code assigned to the supplier.
Site Name	Name of the site.
Site Code	Code assigned to the site.
Scorecard Details	
Scorecard Type	Name of the template used to create the scorecard.
Status	Status of the scorecard:
	Future
	In progress
	Awaiting approval
	Awaiting amendment
	Complete
Due Date	Date the scorecard is due to be completed.
Year	Year that corresponds to the due date based on the system calendar.
Period	Period that corresponds to the due date based on the system calendar.
Week	Week that corresponds to the due date based on the system calendar.
Quarter Start Date	Quarter start date that corresponds to the due date based on the system calendar.
Quarter End Date	Quarter end date that corresponds to the due date based on the system calendar.
Extra Scorecard	Set if this scorecard was scheduled based on a frequency override.
Frequency	Frequency for scheduling this scorecard.
Person Responsible	Name of the technologist responsible for the scorecard.
Business Category	Business categories applicable to this scorecard.
Auto generation of this scorecard	If the Status field is Future, select whether to automatically reschedule this scorecard when it is completed or becomes due.
Submitted by	Name of the user who submitted or completed the scorecard.
Submitted on	Date the scorecard was submitted or completed.
-	

Table 7-1 Scorecard Fields

The following subtabs are available:

- Details
- Questions
- Scoring & Completion
- Attachments
- Change History



#### Create a New Scorecard

To create a new scorecard:

- 1. Select the New Scorecard action. The Create Scorecard dialog box appears.
- 2. From the drop-down lists, select a template, supplier, and site. Click **Ok**. The details of the new scorecard, based on the template, appear.
- 3. Update the fields for the scorecard for the audit/visit and save the scorecard.

#### **Questions Subtab**

To see the scorecard questions, select the Questions subtab. The questions are presented as configured in the scorecard's template for the supplier to provide their answers.

Figure 7-2	Scorecard	Questions	Page
------------	-----------	-----------	------

Details	Questions	Scoring & Completion	Project Links	Custom Fields	Attachments	Change History
e Questio						
1.Is your site cu	urrently approved to a na	ationally recognised standa	rd eg SQF, BRC			
Yes (0)						
ONo(-100)						
Enter Comments	Here	0				
	process capabilities at th	is site				
Growing / Ha	rvesting					
Processing						
Packing						
3.Is there a des	ignated person responsi	ible for food safety				
• Yes (please in	ndicate name and job title)(	(0)				
O No(-100)						
hgggg		^				
		$\bigcirc$				
4.A documented	traceability programme	e has been established				
• Yes(0)						
O No(-100)						
5.Describe your	traceability process					
✓ A recall team	is established(0)					
Mock recalls	are conducted(0)					
A mock recall	was conducted in the last	6 months(0)				
✓ No recall tear	n exists(-10)					

#### **Scoring & Completion Subtab**

To see the scores and completion status for the scorecard, select the Scoring & Completion subtab. The Scorecard Value and Calculated Score are automatically calculated based on the answers given and the scoring rules configured in the scorecard's template.



Details	Questions	Scoring & Completion	Project Links	Custom Fields	Attachments	Change History
B Score De	etails					
Scorecard Value	:	-30				
Calculated Score	2:	Pass ( with concern	ns )			
Scorecard Score	:	Pass ( with concern	ns ) 💙			
B Commen	its					
Score Comment	5:			^		
				~		
General Comments:				^		
				×		
Further Comments:				~		
				~		
Complet	ion					
Completed:						
Completed By:		-				

Figure 7-3 Scoring & Completion Page

## **Deleting a Scorecard**

Scorecards at Future, In Progress, Awaiting Approval, and Awaiting Amendment status may be deleted by the retailer/portal owner user. Scorecards at Future and In Progress status may also be deleted by the supplier user, but only where the scorecard was originally created by the supplier.

